
MINUTES 
Thursday, January Sth, 2015 Regular Meeting 

Planning and Zoning Commission 
City of Lago Vista 

Vice-Chair Jim Moss called the meeting to order at 7:01 P.M. at the Council Chambers, City Municipal 
Building, 5S03 Thunderbird Lago Vista, Texas. Members present were Jim Moss, Richard Brown, Pau l Smith, 
Gary Zaleski and Vernon Reher. Andy White and Tara Griffm were absent. Development Services Director 
David Harrell, City Council Liaison Dale Mitchell, and Development Services Secretary Sherry McCurdy were 
also present. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR NON-HEARING RELATED ITEMS. 

There were no public comments. 

ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR FOR 2015. 

On a motion by Richard Brown and seconded Vernon Reher the Planning and Zoning Commission voted 
unanimously to reappoint Jim Moss as the Planning and Zoning Commission Vice-Chair for 2015. 

CONSENT AGENDA. 

I. Consider tbe Approval oftbe foUowing Minutes: 

A. October 30, 2014 Impact Fee Advisory Minutes. 

B. November 13' 2014 Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes. 

Vice· Chair Jim Moss stated considerations of the minutes' were being moved from the Consent Agenda to 
Business Item Agenda as items three (3) and four (4). 

PUBLIC HEARINGS. 

1. ZON 1032 - Recommendation to the City Council of a Conditional Use at 4705 Navajo Cv. (Lago 
Vista Country Club Estates Section I, Lot 227 A) from Chapter 14, Article 14.200, Section 6 to allow 
an accessory bu ilding setback of 12' instead of 25 ', allow a maximum height of 24' instead of IS " 
and allow a 100% hardy board siding instead of the minimum 25% masonry fayade requirements for 
an addition to an existing accessory building. 

A. Staff Presentation. 

David Harrell gave instructions regarding the Conditional Use request. He gave a history of the 
property and detailed items being requested in the Conditional Use request. He explained the issues 
related to the request. He reviewed the lots surrounding the subject property. David stated staff 
believes there is not a significant impact to neighborhood or area because existing building is already 
almost at tllis height, the setback exists on the current building, and hardy board (siding) already exists 
on the building in place. 

B. Applicant Presentation. 

Garry Bayer stated he trying to build a motor home garage and adding onto the existing bui lding 
makes the most sense. He explained the current building was in place when they bought the property 
and when it was built it was built over the height and close to the property line. They have made 



improvements by adding Hardy Board siding since they purchased the home two years ago. They 
would like the addition to look like the existing building. The remainder of the lot will be improved 
after the building is constructed. 

C. Open Public Hearing. 

Public Hearing opened 7:22 PM. 

Carolyn Baranowski residing at 4705 Navajo Cove spoke in opposition of the Conditional Use stating 
objections to aesthetics and removal of trees. She believes it will diminish her property value and is 
opposed to what it will do to her views. 

Patsy Aird residing at 3949 Outpost Trace spoke in opposition of the Conditional Use. Patsy stated 
she is a local real estate agent and mentioned to the code enforcement issues she sees as she is driving 
clients through the city. She believes applicant 's request is grossly against current code. She stated 
structure was allowed to be constructed against code originally and does not think it should be 
allowed again. 

D. Public Hearing closed 7:41 PM. 

E. Discussion. 

The Planning and Zoning Connnission, Dale Mitchell, Garry Bayer and David Harrell discussed the 
lot next to the building, the shape of the proposed building, balcony on existing building, need for 
new driveway, existing foundation, masonry requirements, and height of current building. They also 
discussed past accessory building requirements, square footage of current building and proposed 
addition, 200 foot notification, possibility of parking RV on a pad if structure is not built, 
consolidation of lots, removal of trees, construction of separate building opposed to adding to 
existing, landscaping requirements and building setbacks. 

Vernon Reher asked applicant if request is denied would the eighteen foot overall height be sufficient 
for RV? 

Mr. Bayer answered they would have to make it sufficient. 

Carolyn Baranowski stated she would much rather have separate buildings. She would not oppose 
something that applicant has right to do. She could not oppose something that could be permitted. 

Garry Bayer stated they have attempted to make it better than a separate building. Have asked for 
three exceptions he thought would be more of an appeasement to neighbors. They plan to replace an 
ugly lot with beautification. He is asking to add onto existing building that was permitted at the time 
it was built. He believes now that the lots are consolidated the rear set back has changed and the 
existing house and accessory building is now in the rear set back and would like to add onto existing 
building to keep it appeasing. Stated he has improved the existing building by adding hardy board at 
a great expense. 

F. Consider Recommendation on Item. 

Paul Smith motioned to an unfavorable recommendation to City Council. There was no second. 

Richard Brown motioned that the Planning and Zoning Connnission recOlmnend approval to the City 
Council. There was no second. 



On a motion by Vernon Reher and seconded by Richard Brown the Planning and Zoning 
Commission voted 4 Ayes (Vernon Reher, Richard Brown, Jim Moss and Gary Zaleski) to 1 Nay ( 
Paul Smith) to recommend approval to the City Council of a Conditional Use at 4705 Navajo Cv. 
(Lago Vista Country Club Estates Section 1, Lot 227 A) from Chapter 14, Article 14.200, Section 6 
to allow an accessory building setback of 12' instead of25', allow a maximum height of24' instead 
of 18', and allow a 100% hardy board siding instead of the minimum 25% masonry fayade 
requirements for an addition to an existing accessory building. 

2. ZON 1034 - Recommendation to the City Council of a PDD Modification at 7909 Turnback Ledge 
Trail (Tessera at Lake Travis Phase lA, Block J, Lot 85) to allow for a 4.6' setback instead of a 5' 
setback along the eastern side setback for an ex isting building. 

A. Staff Presentation. 

David Harrell explained variances are not allowed within Planned Development Districts (PDD) 
therefore tIlis request is being presented as a PDD modification. He gave a brief history and overview 
of the request. 

B. Applicant Presentation. 

The applicant was not present. 

C. Open Public Hearing. 

Public Hearing opened at 8:45 PM. 

There were no public comments. 

D. Public Hearing Closed 8:45 PM. 

E. Discussion. 

The Planning and Zoning Commission, David Harrell and Dale Mitchell discussed Highland Homes 
Master Plan, number of homes currently under construction for Highland Homes, form survey not 
being required, and future need for form survey. 

F. Consider Recommendation On Item. 

On a motion by Paul Smith and seconded by Vernon Reher the Planning and Zoning Commission 
voted unanimously to recommend approval to the City Council of a PDD Modification at 7909 
Turnback Ledge Trail (Tessera at Lake Travis Phase 1 A, Block J, Lot 85) to allow for a 4.6 ' setback 
instead of a 5' setback along the eastern side setback for an existing building. 

BUSINESS ITEMS 

1. Sub-Committee Reports. 

A. Overlay District Sub-Committee Report. 

Richard Brown gave an update of the Overlay District Sub-Committee. They are continuing to 
compare other cities and will have their next meeting next Monday to drive to some of the sites 



they are discussing in the commercial district. 

B. Guest House, Accessory Building and Sidewalk Sub-Committee Report. 

Vernon Reher gave an update for the committee. He stated he will have a rough draft ordinance 
for the Committee to review at the next meeting. Paul Smith is working on Accessory Building 
and Guest House definitions. The Committee will meet next Monday. 

2. 2014 Master Plan Annual Report - Recommendation to Council of annual report documenting 
implementation of the Comprehensive Master Plan for 2014. 

David Harrell explained requested changes that were made from the last meeting. 

Members of the Planning and Zoning Commission, Dale Mitchell and David Harrell discussed the 
contents of the Master Plan Annual Report. David made note of the additiona l suggested changes to 
be made to the report. 

On a motion by Vernon Reher and seconded by Gary Zaleski, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
voted unanimously to recommend to Council the annual report documenting implementation of the 
Comprehensive Plan for 2014 with noted changes as outLined verbatim in the meeting. 

3. October 30, 2014 Impact Fee Advisory Committee Minutes (Added Business Item from Consent 
Agenda Item #1 by Vice-Chair). 

Jim Moss stated someone mentioned how long it had been since impact fees had been changed, and 
that someone said seven years. He stated corrected minutes say fourteen years. 

David Harrell stated Belinda bad listened to audio tape twice and entered into the minutes what was 
actually sa id. 

Sherry McCurdy explained that Mr. Moss had stated he would like to have the request stated in the 
Minutes that fees bad not increased and that Belinda listened to the tape and what was sa id by Jim 
Moss was that they had not been increased in fourt een (14) years. 

Mr. Moss stated that the attachment of the previous Impact Fee Ordinance showed that it was signed 
in 2000. 

David Harrell explained that what is stated at the meetings is what is put in the Minutes even if what 
is stated is incorrect that is sti ll placed in the minutes because that is what was said at that time. Staff 
cannot correct what was said even if it is an incorrect statement. Staff cannot tamper with offi cial 
Minutes. 

Dale Mitchell requested that the minutes be trued up so both sets of minutes reflect the same time 
frame. 

Jim Moss requested that the word spread be changed to ratio, spelling be corrected of the word verses 
to versus, and the signature block changed from Tara Griffin to Jim Moss. 

Dale Mitchell suggested since it is not material to the decision. He stated we just need to state the fact 
that it has been so many years since fees have been changed. 

David Harrell stated he does not want to change what was stated. Whatever is stated is what goes in 
the official minutes. Suggested we can place in parentheses to see past minutes for factual 



information. He will check with attorney. 

Jim Moss stated the signed document of the last change of fees was signed in 2000 which would make 
14 years correct. 

On a motion by Vernon Reher and seconded by Gary Za leski the Planning and Zoning Commission voted 
unanimously to approve the millUtes with corrections made by Jim Moss. 

4. December 11, 2014 Planning & Zoning Commission Minutes (Added Business Item from 
Consent Agenda Item #1 by Vice-Chair). 

Jim Moss requested to correct the spelling of " tow" to "two" and "accessing" to "assessing". 

On a mot ion by Vernon Reher and seconded by Gary Za leski the Planning and Zoning Commission voted 
unanimously to approve the minutes with corrections made by Jim Moss. 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS. 

David Harrell stated the City Council wanted to get a time frame and elements regarding the Comprehensive 
Plan. He distributed a draft of the RFP to the Commission. The item was not on the agenda so no discussion 
was held. 

On a motion by Paul Smith and seconded by Vernon Reher the Zoning Commission meeting adjourned at 
9:53 PM. 

~/~ 1m Moss, Vice-Chair 

On a motion by J: "'" in06.s , seconded by V Q..r Av.,.., Ur-
the above and foregoing instrument was passed and approved this 12th day of March, 2015. 


